

# Minutes of the Annual General Meeting Queen Margaret's School Society

Held on November 23, 2023

#### Present:

Chair Mary DeLury
Treasurer Bruce Munro
Secretary Alison Taylor
Governor Sherra Collett
Governor Denise MacDonald
Governor Tyler Vanderputten

## Regrets:

Governor John Allpress

### From Administration:

Head David Robertson
Deputy Head Ander Monro
Dir. of Finance Thango Vu
Dir. of Communications Hayley Picard
Dir. of Equestrian Angela Dobbie
Manager of Alumni Heather Bartfai
Junior Vice Principal Alison Galloway

Dir. of Academics Alison O'Marra-Armstrong

Exec. Ass't Kim Ludvigson

## **Special Guests:**

Members of the Queen Margaret's School Society.

## 1. Call to order

Mary DeLury called the meeting to order at 5:59 p.m.



#### 2. Introductions

Mary DeLury welcomed all those present. Members of the Board introduced themselves.

## 3. Announcement of Proxy Votes Received

Mary DeLury reported that 15 members were represented by proxy.

#### 4. Affirmation of Quorum Present

Mary DeLury reported that a quorum was present with 28 Society members in attendance and 15 members represented by proxy.

## 5. Approval of Minutes

*Motion:* Moved by Bruce Munro and seconded by Sherra Collett that the minutes from the November 24, 2022 AGM of Queen Margaret's School Society be approved as written and circulated.

Motion carried.

#### 6. Chair's Report

Mary DeLury delivered the annual Chair's Report to Queen Margaret's School Society:

Our school is in mourning for one of our local Grade 12 students. Cole McPherson passed away almost 2 weeks ago in a tragic accident. His passing has affected us all. It has been a time of reflection, a time of gathering to share in our grief and our stories, and a time of tears as well as laughter. We have heard some very colourful stories about Cole these past weeks, and as his grandpa, Bruce McPherson said to me (with a twinkle in his eye) some of those stories were supposed to stay a secret.

This event has changed the lives of so many people. Not only are we grieving the loss of one of our children but we also, at the same time, pull in our loved ones close. We feel how grateful we are for the people around us, our families, our colleagues, our friends. I am truly grateful for the people here at QMS; staff, students, the whole community.

Our school is a wonderful community to be a part of and it is so rewarding to see all of our kids shine in their own way. The graduating class of 2023 was our biggest grad class to date and had the first male 'lifers.' Speech Day is now becoming a very big event!

Our athletic programs are doing well, including our signature program, the Equestrian. Our wrestling program is really taking off! The kids at QMS can participate in so many different areas of interest—the play *Seussical Jr.* was a fabulous success—I so enjoyed seeing them perform this and to see what talent there is here in our community! The facilities that have been built over the past few years are being utilized well and the new Sports Hall has recently had a refinish of the floor to make it smoother.



We finalized our refresh of the Strategic Plan this year that is a streamlined and unique plan that is being used throughout the School now. The Values in Action are: Be curious, Be Kind, Be Brave and Be YOU!

We are pleased to welcome two new Board members this year; Ian Humphries and John Garrad-Cole. Both Ian and John are newer members of our community who are jumping in with both feet! We will hear from them later tonight.

We have said farewell to two Board members this year; Luke Mills and John Allpress have both stepped down. Thank you, Luke and John, for your service to QMS and for your support.

The past year has been a success and we could not have done it without the leadership team at QMS.

Thank you, Dave Robertson, our Head of School, you have shown so much courage and grace over the whole year and during this very difficult time. You continue to lead our School in an exemplary manner. We are all grateful. Thank you to Susan Cruikshank, our Junior School Principal, you are such a pillar of strength for all of us and we appreciate your kindness and your leadership. Thank you Ander Monro, our Deputy Head of School, you are so thoughtful and we appreciate your strength, leadership and care of everyone. Thank you to our Parents' Association—Natalie MacGregor, the PA Chair, is here tonight.

Thank you to this year's Board Committee Chairs, Bruce Munro and Alison Taylor. Thank you to the whole Board. I appreciate your time and your ability to work together; we have a very cohesive board that works a as a team to help shape the future of this wonderful school.

I am grateful for this opportunity to serve as the Chair of your Board, I truly am. Thank you all for coming tonight, and for your continued support of Queen Margaret's School.

## 7. Head's Report

David Robertson delivered the annual Head's Report to Queen Margaret's School Society:

The last 11 days has been a challenge as we have been working our way, a step at a time, through the loss of Cole. Through this tragedy, our community has embraced our students and staff, offering support and learning. Our sense of community is remarkably strong! This report is always a harder one to give as we are so focused on this school year and the last one has already receded into the distance.

Rather than going through all the details and exploits of the past school year, I would like to focus on one single word—growth—as that colours everything we do.

The growth of the School has been apparent in so many different ways:

- Enrollment has grown by 162 students over the last four years.
- We are offering more co-curricular opportunities with increased participation from the students.
- We have witnessed growth in our culture of philanthropy, with funds needed to support ventures such as Innisfree Farm, a trip to VMun (we have 23 students signed up for this event this year!), the Girls' UK Rugby Tour and many more.



Above all, we see a growth in our 'people' — our staff and student culture.

Among the metrics we could use to guage our success, the one I prefer is to measure our success by the quality of the human beings that we graduate. It's summed up by the phrase, "The character you build, is yours forever."

I would like to thank our terrific staff around the room for the outstanding work that they do. I would also like to express my particular appreciation to Ander Monro, Deputy Head of School, for the enormous responsibility that he takes on every day and for the whole way that he does it.

I've mentioned a number of times about the quality of our Board and how fortunate we are to enjoy that very tangible feeling of support from them. Of course, the leader of that group is Mary DeLury, our Board Chair, and I was just reflecting the other day of the 20 or so different Boards that I've been on or interacted with, the best Chair of them all is sitting right here! Thank you so much for everything, Mary.

## Treasurer's Report

Bruce Munro delivered the annual Treasurer's Report to Queen Margaret's School Society:

It has been a financially positive year for QMS. The audited financial statements prepared by Grant Thornton for the QMS Society for the year ending June 30, 2023, show excess of \$878,502.

The following are some of the highlights of the funds.

#### **General Fund:**

Overall, current assets are shown at \$6,324,995 and current liabilities at \$23,016,617. However, some \$12,808,611 of the amount in current liabilities is due to the long-term debt that is classified as short-term, due to the derivative nature of the Banker's Acceptance note. We paid down long-term mortgage debt of roughly one-half million during the year. Our line of credit at year-end stood at \$0, the same as the previous six years.

Operationally, we have an operating surplus of \$878,502. Amortization (a non-cash expense) amounted to \$1,273,718. This translates to what would normally be free cash flow of \$2,152,220 before any principal payments and capital spending. However, it needs to be noted that a large portion of this was an in-kind non-cash gift.

#### Indebtedness:

The financial statements show the School's debt at year-end is comprised of six main facilities, with RBC.

- Facility 1: \$1,000,000 revolving demand. (LOC)
- Facility 2: \$1,894,000 non-revolving term facility by way of (a) RBP Loans or (b) Bankers' Acceptances. Facility 3: \$7,837,000 non-revolving term facility by way of (a) RBP Loans or (b) Bankers' Acceptances.
- Facility 4: \$523,000 non-revolving term facility.
- Facility 5: \$619,638 non-revolving term facility.
- Facility 6: \$1,955,000 non-revolving term facility by way of (a) RBP Loans or (b) Bankers' Acceptances.
- Other facilities: (a) Credit Card to a maximum amount of \$150,000



The Society's borrowing is subject to meeting debt covenants and as of June 30, 2023 the Society is in compliance with these covenants.

Also, as of June 30, 2023, the School had utilized \$0 of its \$1M line of credit. This is comparable to the same period last year.

#### **Audit Results:**

For the 2022–23 audit, members of the Audit Committee, formed from members of the Finance Committee, met with the QMS school leadership at the outset of the audit in May of this year to set out the scope of the audit and the time schedule for its completion. This meeting included a review of any changes in regulatory, accounting, and audit standards, as well as the roles of participants in the audit process.

In September/October the school leadership had follow-up meetings with the firm of Grant Thornton to review the Audit Findings Report along with any concerns that were raised during the audit.

The audit findings report indicated the School's accounting policies and financial estimates/practices to be appropriate, and there were no significant difficulties or disagreements with management during the course of the audit.

As is normal, some minor unadjusted misstatements contained in the financial records were identified and corrected. It is important to note that the audit did not come across any material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal financial controls.

Overall, the audit went smoothly and once again there was excellent cooperation with management throughout the audit. This was the 8th year that Grant Thornton had been engaged in this undertaking.

## **Summary:**

In summary, the School continues to grow through increased enrollment. There have been positive amounts of philanthropy, as noted in note 24, of over \$1.5M in donations by Governors as "related transactions." The net surplus of \$878,502 (i.e. excess of revenues over expenditures), is an increased amount over previous years. Risk management has been a focus of QMS, which includes a strategic focus on both operational risk and financial risk. Financially, QMS has locked in most of its long-term debt at historically low rates for the duration of the amortization period.

The school leadership has performed well and made thoughtful and deliberate decisions to have such a favourable and positive financial outcome. The School continues to operate in an agile manner, navigating unprecedented inflation, post-COVID boarding school market changes, and record enrollment growth. While we continue to enjoy an increasingly favourable academic reputation and increased day student enrollment, we expect inflationary difficulties, a challenging macroeconomic outlook and overall educational trends all will present future challenges. At this time, we are carefully optimistic that the School's financial position will continue to be a positive one.



*Motion:* Moved by Bruce Munro and seconded by Alison Taylor to accept the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

#### Motion carried.

## Appointment of Auditor for the 2023–24 Fiscal Year

We are pleased to report that our auditor for 2023, Grant Thornton, has gone the extra mile to ensure QMS Financial results are in accordance with the Canadian Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations. We are happy with the service that Grant Thornton provided to QMS this year. As we are also currently under a fixed fee schedule with Grant Thornton until next year, we would like to recommend Grant Thornton continue to be auditor for the school year 2023-2024. For the following year, the QMS Finance department will consult with the Finance Committee to determine whether a request for proposal is recommended for the selection of the following year's auditor.

*Motion:* Moved by Sherra Collett and seconded by Denise MacDonald to appoint the firm of Grant Thornton for the 2023–2024 fiscal year.

#### Motion carried.

#### 10. Governance Committee

#### a) Election of Governors

Alison Taylor addressed the Society and reviewed the nominating process and the factors considered in selecting candidates to ensure a balanced composition of the QMS Board of Governors.

Alison Taylor submitted the Governance Committee's candidates for Board membership. Each candidate was present and given the opportunity to address the meeting. The new candidates nominated for confirmation of a three-year term were Ian Humphries and John Garrad-Cole. Current Governor, Bruce Munro, let his name stand for a further three-year term.

Motion: Moved by Alison Taylor and seconded by Hayley Picard to confirm the election of the candidates submitted by the Governance Committee: Ian Humphries and John Garrad-Cole let their names stand for a three-year term.

#### Motion carried.

*Motion:* Moved by Alison Taylor and seconded by Tyler Vanderputten to confirm the re-election of the candidate submitted by the Governance Committee: Bruce Munro let his name stand for a further three-year term.

### Motion carried.



## b) Departing Governors

Mary DeLury noted that Luke Mills and John Allpress have resigned from the Board. She thanked Luke and John for their commitment and dedication to Queen Margaret's School.

## 11. Close of Meeting

Mary DeLury asked if there was any other business to be brought forward. There being none, the November 23, 2023 Annual General Meeting of Queen Margaret's School Society was adjourned at 6:32 p.m.

After the end of the meeting, M DeLury presented door prizes to attendees.

spant lle Ly	November 30, 2023
Mary DeLury, Chair	Date of approval